

Table of Contents

1.	DECLARATION REGARDING THE INFORMATION PROVIDED IN THIS REPORT	3
2.	KEY FIGURES	4
3.	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF THE RESULTS	5
3.1.	GROUP FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS ⁽¹⁾	5
3.2.	BUSINESS UPDATE	5
3.3.	MANAGEMENT CHANGE	5
3.4.	OUTLOOK	5
4.	OPERATING REVIEW PER SEGMENT	6
4.1.	REVENUE AND ADJUSTED EBITDA PER SEGMENT	6
4.1.1	L. H1 2018	6
4.1.2	2. Q2 2018	6
4.2.	RUGS	7
4.3.	COMMERCIAL	7
4.4.	RESIDENTIAL	7
5.	OTHER FINANCIAL ITEMS REVIEW	8
5.1.	NON-RECURRING ITEMS	8
5.2.	NET FINANCING EXPENSES	8
5.3.	TAXATION	8
5.4.	EARNINGS PER SHARE	8
5.5.	CASHFLOW AND NET DEBT	8
6.	RISK FACTORS	8
7.	CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	9
7.1.	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME	9
7.2.	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION	10
7.3.	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS	11
7.4.	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY	12
7.5.	SELECTED EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	13
7.5.1	SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES	13
7.5.2	2. SEGMENT REPORTING	15
7.5.3	3. INTEGRATION AND RESTRUCTURING EXPENSES	16
7.5.4	I. GOODWILL	16
7.5.5	5. NET DEBT RECONCILIATION	17
7.5.6	5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS	17
7.5.7	7. COMMITMENTS	17
7.5.8	B. EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE	17

1. Declaration regarding the information provided in this report

We, the undersigned declare that, to the best of our knowledge, the condensed financial statements for the six-months period ended June 30, 2018, which have been prepared in accordance with IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting, as adopted by the European Union, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Group and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, and that the half-year report includes a fair review of the important events that have occurred during the first six months of the financial year and their impact on the condensed financial statements, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties for the remaining six months of the financial year.

Tom Gysens Chief Financial Officer

Cyrille Ragoucy Chairman of the Board and interim Chief Executive Officer

2. Key Figures

(€ thousands)	H1 2018	H1 2017
Results		
Revenue	321,896	333,931
Adjusted EBITDA	34,171	46,536
Adjusted EBITDA Margin	10.6%	13.9%
Integration and restructuring expenses	(2,410)	(2,634)
EBITDA	31,761	43,902
Depreciation / amortisation	(16,199)	(15,516)
Operating profit / (loss) for the period	15,562	28,386
Net finance expenses	(12,718)	(21,555)
Income tax benefit / (expense)	(127)	(3,356)
Profit/(loss) for the period	2,717	3,475
Cash flow		
Cash at beginning of period	37,338	45,988
Net cash generated / (used) by operating activities	9,511	20,690
Net cash used by investing activities	(14,912)	(90,753)
Net cash generated / (used) by financing activities	(14,618)	59,955
Cash at end of period	17,317	35,879
Financial position		
Net debt	272,259	256,822
LTM Adjusted EBITDA	72,016	99,175
Net debt / Adjusted EBITDA	3.8	2.6

3. Management discussion and analysis of the results

3.1. Group Financial Highlights⁽¹⁾

- H1 Consolidated: Revenue of €321.9m -3.6%, Adjusted EBITDA of €34.2m -26.6%, EBITDA margin of 10.6%
- H1 Organic revenue decline of 8.8%, by division:
 - Rugs decline of 16.2% as a result of the previously announced partial loss in 'share of wallet' with two
 US home improvement customers and strong prior year comparative. This is largely in line with our
 guidance, although Q2 saw a softer trading environment develop in Europe with lower footfall reported
 by our customers
 - Strong Commercial growth of 8.6%, driven by both US and Europe
 - Residential decline of 12.8% (Q1 14.3%) due to customer disruption, unfavorable weather and weak trading conditions, mainly in the UK
- EBITDA in H1 includes €2.6m of costs associated with property taxes for the full year (in line with last year)
- EBITDA margin impacted by continued raw material headwinds, negative FX and lower volumes
- Leverage of 3.8x (net debt of €272.3m) compared to 2.9x at December 2017 reflecting the decline of the last 12 month's EBITDA and a normal seasonal working capital increase

3.2. Business Update

- We continue to successfully diversify our US rugs business with new customer wins, growth in indoor rugs and e-commerce. In outdoor rugs, for next season's programme we have regained part of the 'share of wallet' lost in 2017, which will start to benefit from Q4 2018.
- Bentley delivered underlying growth⁽²⁾ of 13.8% revenue and 36.4% EBITDA, driven by increased market share and by delivering growth on the investment made in sales resource.
- Commercial division \$2m targeted procurement and operational cost synergies will now be fully delivered in 2018.
- The optimisation of the Residential operational footprint has been completed, benefits have commenced
 and we remain confident to deliver the full run rate benefit of €8.3m EBITDA in financial year 2019.
 However, these benefits will start from a lower base as the Residential market has remained challenging
 into Q3.

3.3. Management Change

On August 27, 2018, the Board of Balta announced that, with immediate effect, Mr Tom Debusschere is stepping down as Chief Executive by mutual agreement. A search to identify a long-term successor has commenced. Until this process is completed, Mr Cyrille Ragoucy, the Chairman of the Board, will become interim CEO.

3.4. Outlook

"As a Group, our first half results broadly met our expectations, with better than anticipated performance in Commercial offset by more challenging trading in European Rugs and UK Residential. We have also made strong progress across our six key priorities and are on track to deliver their associated benefits. However, lower footfall at our European Rugs customers and continued negative market conditions in UK Residential, persist into Q3.

We will still deliver an improved EBITDA run rate in the second half of 2018, weighted to the fourth quarter, underpinned by the progress we are making on the six key priorities we set out at the beginning of the year. However, the continued soft trading environment in the third quarter, mainly in UK Residential and European Rugs, will result in a delayed recovery. As such, we now anticipate full year EBITDA below the previous guidance⁽³⁾, with H2 2018 EBITDA to still be an improvement on H2 2017 EBITDA."

- (1) The acquisition of Bentley was made at the start of Q2 2017, therefore from Q2 2018 Bentley is reported under the Commercial division with organic growth and FX shown separately. For Q1 2018 Bentley is shown in the M&A analysis (including the FX impact of dollar to euro translation) and the prior year comparative is shown in the pro-forma figure.
- (2) Underlying growth refers to Bentley performance year on year in US \$
- (3) Previous guidance was €82m €87m

4. Operating review per segment

4.1. Revenue and Adjusted EBITDA per segment

4.1.1. H1 2018

(€ million, unless otherwise stated)	H1 2018	H1 2017	% change	o/w organic growth	o/w FX	o/w M&A
Rugs	100.8	126.4	(20.3)%	(16.2)%	(4.0)%	0.0%
Commercial	101.9	72.5	40.6%	8.6%	(4.1)%	36.1%
Residential	105.1	121.4	(13.4)%	(12.8)%	(0.6)%	0.0%
Non-Woven	14.1	13.7	2.6%	2.6%	0.0%	0.0%
Consolidated Revenue	321.9	333.9	(3.6)%	(8.8)%	(2.6)%	7.8%
Pro Forma Adjustment Bentley	-	27.7				
Pro Forma Revenue	321.9	361.6	(11.0)%	(7.4)%	(3.5)%	
Rugs	12.5	23.2	(46.4)%	(40.2)%	(6.2)%	0.0%
Commercial	14.1	10.4	36.1%	9.6%	(4.7)%	31.2%
Residential	6.2	11.4	(45.3)%	(40.8)%	(4.6)%	0.0%
Non-Woven	1.4	1.5	(8.9)%	(8.9)%	0.0%	0.0%
Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA	34.2	46.5	(26.6)%	(28.2)%	(5.3)%	6.9%
Pro Forma Adjustment Bentley	-	2.9				
Pro Forma Adjusted EBITDA	34.2	49.5	(30.9)%	(24.9)%	(6.0)%	
Rugs	12.4%	18.4%				
Commercial	13.8%	14.3%				
Residential	5.9%	9.4%				
Non-Woven	9.8%	11.0%				
Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA Margin	10.6%	13.9%				
Pro Forma Adjustment Bentley		10.6%				
Pro Forma Adjusted EBITDA Margin	10.6%	13.7%				

Note: The acquisition of Bentley was made at the end of Q1 2017, therefore from Q2 2018 onwards Bentley is reported under the Commercial division with organic growth and FX shown separately. For Q1 2018 Bentley is shown in the M&A analysis (including the FX impact of dollar to euro translation) and the prior year comparative is shown in the Pro Forma figure

4.1.2. Q2 2018

(€ million, unless otherwise stated)	Q2 2018	Q2 2017	% change	o/w organic growth	o/w FX	o/w M&A
Rugs	47.6	63.0	(24.5)%	(20.7)%	(3.8)%	0.0%
Commercial	53.6	50.3	6.6%	12.3%	(5.8)%	0.0%
Residential	51.5	58.2	(11.6)%	(11.1)%	(0.5)%	0.0%
Non-Woven	6.9	6.8	1.2%	1.2%	0.0%	0.0%
Consolidated Revenue	159.6	178.4	(10.5)%	(7.4)%	(3.1)%	0.0%
Pro Forma Adjustment Bentley	-	-				
Pro Forma Revenue	159.6	178.4	(10.5)%	(7.4)%	(3.1)%	
Rugs	6.6	12.1	(45.7)%	(45.0)%	(0.7)%	0.0%
Commercial	8.2	7.4	10.8%	16.7%	(5.9)%	0.0%
Residential	3.5	6.3	(45.2)%	(42.4)%	(2.8)%	0.0%
Non-Woven	0.6	0.7	(6.7)%	(6.7)%	0.0%	0.0%
Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA	18.8	26.4	(28.8)%	(26.2)%	(2.6)%	0.0%
Pro Forma Adjustment Bentley	-	-				
Pro Forma Adjusted EBITDA	18.8	26.4	(28.8)%	(26.2)%	(2.6)%	
Rugs	13.8%	19.1%				
Commercial	15.3%	14.7%				
Residential	6.7%	10.9%				
Non-Woven	9.0%	9.7%				
Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA Margin	11.8%	14.8%				
Pro Forma Adjustment Bentley						
Pro Forma Adjusted EBITDA Margin	11.8%	14.8%				

Note: The acquisition of Bentley was made at the end of Q1 2017, therefore from Q2 2018 onwards Bentley is reported under the Commercial division with organic growth and FX shown separately. For Q1 2018 Bentley is shown in the M&A analysis (including the FX impact of dollar to euro translation) and the prior year comparative is shown in the Pro Forma figure

4.2. Rugs

Organic performance has been largely in line with our guidance of mid-teens revenue decline, reflecting the 'share of wallet' reduction with two US home improvement customers, a softer trading environment in Europe with retailers reporting lower footfall, and the strong 2017 first half comparative when revenue grew by 12.9%.

First half organic revenue declined by 16.2% amplified by a negative FX impact of 4.0% driven by the weaker US dollar resulting in a consolidated revenue decline of 20.3% compared to the previous year.

Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA of €12.5m declined by 46.4%, reflecting the lower volumes, the time delay between higher raw material prices and the actions required to compensate, and FX. The H1 negative FX impact on EBITDA is 6.2% (Q2 of -0.7% compared to Q1 of -12.2%) as a result of the weaker year on year US dollar, but the FX impact is expected to neutralise over the year.

Rugs programme negotiations with existing and new customers have progressed well. We have continued to diversify our US rugs business through new customer wins, growth in indoor rugs and e-commerce. In outdoor rugs, for next season's programme we have regained part of the 'share of wallet' lost in 2017, which will start to benefit from Q4 2018. However, the soft European trading environment is continuing into the third quarter.

4.3. Commercial

Bentley was included from the start of Q2 2017, therefore from Q2 2018 Bentley is reported under the Commercial division with organic growth and FX shown separately. For Q1 2018 the growth impact from Bentley is shown under M&A (including the FX impact of US Dollar to Euro translation) and the prior year comparative is shown in the pro-forma figure.

Consolidated Revenue increased by 40.6% to €101.9m, driven by the first time inclusion of Bentley in Q1 2018 and organic growth of 8.6%. Price increases have been implemented both in Europe and the US during Q1, and we are now starting to see the margin benefits.

In Europe, we are back on track after the operational issues we encountered during the second half of 2017, and delivered low-single digit organic growth over the first half, driven by mid-single digit organic growth in the second guarter.

In the US, in underlying currency, the Bentley business grew revenues by 13.8%. Bentley had a strong first half performance, and continues to grow ahead of the market, benefiting from the increased investments made in sales resource. The operational and procurement cost synergies between our European and US commercial businesses will deliver the projected \$2m in 2018.

We have developed a stronger relationship with an LVT supplier, enabling Bentley to provide a one stop shop for our customers' projects. We have more than doubled our LVT sales versus prior year, albeit still from a small base.

H1 Adjusted EBITDA increased by 36.1% to €14.1m with organic growth contributing 9.6%.

4.4. Residential

Consolidated Revenue of €105.1m declined by 13.4%, with an organic decline of 12.8% and negative FX impact of 0.6%. The Residential revenue decline is almost all volume driven. The underlying conditions in our key European markets have been challenging, with reduced footfall in our customer outlets resulting in a more competitive price environment to protect volume. At the same time, the strategy to grow sales of higher margin products continues to be successful with the share of total Residential revenue increased to 31%.

Generally, the residential retail and wholesale sectors in our key markets were under pressure, impacted by the cold weather conditions during Q1 and the prolonged hot weather in Q2 and extending into Q3, alongside major events such as the Football World Cup, resulting in subdued retail footfall. More specifically for the UK, the change from the previously stable residential market proved very challenging. This was further amplified by the subdued performance of the largest UK carpet retailer, which in the meantime started its restructuring plan.

Adjusted EBITDA margins of 5.9% remained significantly lower than in H1 2017 (9.4%) due to the raw material price inflation, adverse currency movements and the reduction in volumes, with the mitigating benefits from the footprint optimization having started in H1. As a reminder, the benefits from the optimisation of the Residential operational footprint will deliver the run rate benefits of €8.3m EBITDA in financial year 2019. However, these benefits will start from a lower base as the Residential market has remained challenging into Q3.

5. Other financial items review

5.1. Non-recurring items

Non-recurring expenses over the first six months of 2018 amounted to €2.4m, as compared to €2.6m in the same period last year. €1.8m in the current period is driven by the previously announced optimisation of the Residential operational footprint. In addition, a minor part is fees incurred for strategic advisory services supporting the execution of the six key priorities for delivering improved performance as detailed in the 2017 annual report.

5.2. Net financing expenses

Net finance expenses for the first six months of 2018 are equal to €12.7m, as compared to €21.6m in the same period last year. This decrease is mainly driven by (i) a €6.2m lower interest expense due to lower gross debt after the IPO, (ii) a €1.1m reduction in financing costs due to refinancing part of the 7.75% Senior Secured Notes by a €35m Senior Term Loan facility at 1.4% margin in September 2017, and (iii) the absence of €1.7m fees incurred in H1 2017 in relation to the partial early redemption of the Senior Secured Notes.

5.3. Taxation

Income tax expense equal to €0.1m for the six months ended June 30, 2018, as compared to an income tax expense of €3.4m in the same period last year. The normalized effective tax rate of the Group amounts to around 26%. The income tax expense for the period is further driven by €0.3m utilization of tax credits not previously recognized as deferred tax assets and €0.3m of tax investment incentives.

5.4. Earnings per share

Net earnings per share for the first six months of 2018 were €0.08, compared to €0.10 for the same peiod last year.

5.5. Cashflow and net debt

Net debt at the end of June 2018 is equal to €272.3m, versus €253.5m at the end of December 2017. The increase in net debt is driven by (i) exceptional one-off costs in relation to the restructuring of the operating footprint in our Residential division, and (ii) an increase in working capital driven by the seasonality of our business operations. We intentionally build up inventories during the months of June and July in preparation for the increase in demand and the annual shutdown of the majority of our manufacturing facilities in August. As a result, our trade working capital is higher during the summer months compared to the rest of the year.

6. Risk Factors

There are no material changes related to the risks and uncertainties for the Group as explained in the section "Summary of main risks" of the 2017 annual report.

7. Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

7.1. Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

€ thousands)	H1 2018	H1 2017
I. CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT		
Revenue	321,896	333,931
Raw material expenses	(154,290)	(162,075)
Changes in inventories	5,202	12,650
Employee benefit expenses	(80,346)	(77,723)
Other income	1,802	4,050
Other expenses	(60,093)	(64,297)
Depreciation/ amortization	(16,199)	(15,516)
Adjusted Operating Profit ¹	17,971	31,020
Gains on asset disposals	-	
Integration and restructuring expenses	(2,410)	(2,634)
Operating profit / (loss) 1	15,562	28,386
Finance income	50	17
Finance expenses	(12,768)	(21,572)
Net finance expenses	(12,718)	(21,555)
Profit / (loss) before income taxes	2,844	6,831
Income tax benefit / (expense)	(127)	(3,356)
Profit / (loss) for the period from continuing operations	2,717	3,475
Profit/ (loss) for the period from discontinued operations		
Profit/(loss) for the period	2,717	3,475
rema(1888) for the ported	_,	5,116
Attributable to:		
Equity holders	2,717	3,441
Non-controlling interest	-,	34
II. CONSOLIDATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME		
Items in other comprehensive income that may be subsequently reclassified		
to P&L		
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations	(11,140)	(5,053)
Changes in fair value of hedging instruments qualifying for cash flow hedge	(**,****)	(2,222)
accounting	160	1,170
Changes in deferred taxes	(49)	.,
Items in other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to P&L		
Changes in deferred taxes	42	(172)
Changes in employee defined benefit obligations	(163)	525
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax	(11,150)	(3,530)
Total comprehensive income for the period	(8,434)	(55)
Basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations		
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company	0.08	0.10
	0.00	0.10

⁽¹⁾ Adjusted Operating Profit / Operating profit/(loss) are non-GAAP measures.
Adjusted EBITDA is calculated as Adjusted Operating Profit (Loss) adjusted for depreciation and amortization charges.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated condensed interim financial statements.

7.2. Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

(€ thousands)	30 June 2018	31 Dec 2017
Property, plant and equipment		
Land and buildings	157,707	162,103
Plant and machinery	129,640	130,977
Other fixtures and fittings, tools and equipment	18,051	18,080
Goodwill	193,392	198,814
Intangible assets	12,046	12,218
Deferred income tax assets	4,684	4,747
Trade and other receivables	956	1,165
Total non-current assets	516,474	528,104
Inventories	158,425	147,868
Derivative financial instruments	206	-
Trade and other receivables	61,732	61,539
Current income tax assets	1,220	3,434
Cash and cash equivalents	17,317	37,338
Total current assets	238,901	250,179
Total assets	755,375	778,283
Share capital	252,950	252,950
Share premium	65,660	65,660
Other comprehensive income	(31,063)	(19,913)
Retained earnings	4,830	6,297
Other reserves	(39,878)	(39,878)
Total equity	252,499	265,116
Senior Secured Notes	229,098	228,130
Senior Term Loan Facility	34,838	34,782
Bank and Other Borrowings	12,750	13,310
Deferred income tax liabilities	50,040	54,471
Provisions for other liabilities and charges	2,402	2,335
Employee benefit obligations	4,207	4,127
Total non-current liabilities	333,336	337,155
Senior Secured Notes	3,425	3,425
Senior Term Loan Facility	(117)	(108)
Bank and Other Borrowings	1,623	2,361
Provisions for other liabilities and charges	4,178	7,316
Derivative financial instruments	14	2
Other payroll and social related payables	32,785	33,373
Trade and other payables	124,303	126,375
Income tax liabilities	3,330	3,265
Total current liabilities	169,541	176,010
Total liabilities	502,876	513,165
Total equity and liabilities	755,375	778,283

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated condensed interim financial statements.

7.3. Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

	H1 2018	H1 2017
I. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES		
Net profit / (loss) for the period	2,717	3,47
Adjustments for:		
Income tax expense/(income)	127	3,356
Finance income	(50)	(17
Financial expense	12,768	21,572
Depreciation, amortisation	16,199	15,517
(Gain)/loss on disposal of non-current assets	(2)	
Movement in provisions and deferred revenue	(3,139)	
Fair value of derivatives	(34)	
Cash generated before changes in working capital	28,586	43,90°
Changes in working capital:		
Inventories	(12,479)	(22,089
Trade receivables	(4,447)	1,489
Trade payables	963	7,925
Other working capital	165	(5,972
Cash generated after changes in working capital	12,788	25,254
Net income tax (paid)	(3,277)	(4,565
Net cash generated / (used) by operating activities	9,511	20,690
II. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES	(1.1.===)	(2.1.2=2
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment		
	(14,728)	·
Acquisition of intangibles	(599)	(484
Acquisition of intangibles Proceeds from non-current assets		(484 658
Acquisition of intangibles Proceeds from non-current assets Acquisition of subsidiary	(599) 415 -	(484 655 (69,654
Acquisition of intangibles Proceeds from non-current assets	(599)	(484 655 (69,654
Acquisition of intangibles Proceeds from non-current assets Acquisition of subsidiary Net cash used by investing activities IIII. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES	(599) 415 - (14,912)	(484 655 (69,654 (90,753
Acquisition of intangibles Proceeds from non-current assets Acquisition of subsidiary Net cash used by investing activities IIII. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Interest and other finance charges paid, net	(599) 415 -	(484 655 (69,654 (90,753
Acquisition of intangibles Proceeds from non-current assets Acquisition of subsidiary Net cash used by investing activities IIII. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Interest and other finance charges paid, net IPO Proceeds	(599) 415 - (14,912)	(484 655 (69,654 (90,753 (17,477 145,000
Acquisition of intangibles Proceeds from non-current assets Acquisition of subsidiary Net cash used by investing activities IIII. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Interest and other finance charges paid, net IPO Proceeds Incremental costs paid directley attributable to IPO	(599) 415 - (14,912)	(484 655 (69,654 (90,753 (17,477 145,000 (8,170
Acquisition of intangibles Proceeds from non-current assets Acquisition of subsidiary Net cash used by investing activities IIII. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Interest and other finance charges paid, net IPO Proceeds Incremental costs paid directley attributable to IPO Proceeds from borrowings with third parties	(599) 415 - (14,912)	(484 659 (69,654 (90,753 (17,477 145,000 (8,170 76,22)
Acquisition of intangibles Proceeds from non-current assets Acquisition of subsidiary Net cash used by investing activities IIII. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Interest and other finance charges paid, net IPO Proceeds Incremental costs paid directley attributable to IPO Proceeds from borrowings with third parties Proceeds from capital contributions	(599) 415 - (14,912)	(484 655 (69,654 (90,753 (17,477 145,000 (8,170 76,227 1,345
Acquisition of intangibles Proceeds from non-current assets Acquisition of subsidiary Net cash used by investing activities IIII. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Interest and other finance charges paid, net IPO Proceeds Incremental costs paid directley attributable to IPO Proceeds from borrowings with third parties Proceeds from capital contributions Repayments of Senior Secured Notes	(599) 415 - (14,912) (10,507) - - - -	(484 655 (69,654 (90,753 (17,477 145,000 (8,170 76,227 1,343 (21,228
Acquisition of intangibles Proceeds from non-current assets Acquisition of subsidiary Net cash used by investing activities IIII. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Interest and other finance charges paid, net IPO Proceeds Incremental costs paid directley attributable to IPO Proceeds from borrowings with third parties Proceeds from capital contributions Repayments of Senior Secured Notes Repayments of borrowings with third parties	(599) 415 - (14,912) (10,507) - - - - (1,236)	(484 655 (69,654 (90,753 (17,477 145,000 (8,170 76,227 1,343 (21,228
Acquisition of intangibles Proceeds from non-current assets Acquisition of subsidiary Net cash used by investing activities IIII. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Interest and other finance charges paid, net IPO Proceeds Incremental costs paid directley attributable to IPO Proceeds from borrowings with third parties Proceeds from capital contributions Repayments of Senior Secured Notes Repayments of borrowings with third parties Dividends paid	(599) 415 - (14,912) (10,507) - - - - (1,236) (2,875)	(484 655 (69,654 (90,753 (17,477 145,000 (8,170 76,227 1,343 (21,228 (115,740
Acquisition of intangibles Proceeds from non-current assets Acquisition of subsidiary Net cash used by investing activities IIII. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Interest and other finance charges paid, net IPO Proceeds Incremental costs paid directley attributable to IPO Proceeds from borrowings with third parties Proceeds from capital contributions Repayments of Senior Secured Notes Repayments of borrowings with third parties	(599) 415 - (14,912) (10,507) - - - - (1,236)	(484 655 (69,654 (90,753 (17,477 145,000 (8,170 76,227 1,343 (21,228 (115,740
Acquisition of intangibles Proceeds from non-current assets Acquisition of subsidiary Net cash used by investing activities IIII. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Interest and other finance charges paid, net IPO Proceeds Incremental costs paid directley attributable to IPO Proceeds from borrowings with third parties Proceeds from capital contributions Repayments of Senior Secured Notes Repayments of borrowings with third parties Dividends paid	(599) 415 - (14,912) (10,507) - - - - (1,236) (2,875)	(484 659 (69,654 (90,753 (17,477 145,000 (8,170 76,227 1,340 (21,228 (115,740
Acquisition of intangibles Proceeds from non-current assets Acquisition of subsidiary Net cash used by investing activities IIII. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Interest and other finance charges paid, net IPO Proceeds Incremental costs paid directley attributable to IPO Proceeds from borrowings with third parties Proceeds from capital contributions Repayments of Senior Secured Notes Repayments of borrowings with third parties Dividends paid Net cash generated / (used) by financing activities	(599) 415 - (14,912) (10,507) - - - (1,236) (2,875) (14,618)	(21,272 (484 655 (69,654 (90,753) (17,477 145,000 (8,170) 76,227 1,343 (21,228 (115,740) 59,955 (10,109)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated condensed interim financial statements.

7.4. Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(€ thousands)	Share capital	Share premium	Preferred Equity Certificates	Other comprehensive income	Retained earnings	Other reserves	Total	Non-controlling interest	Total equity
Balance at January 1 2017	171	1,260	138,600	(7,063)	3,351	-	136,319	-	136,319
Profit / (loss) for the period	-	-	-	-	2,946	-	2,946	34	2,980
Other comprehensive income							_		-
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations	-	-	-	(13,522)	-	-	(13,522)	-	(13,522)
Changes in fair value of hedging instruments qualifying for cash flow hedge accounting	-		-	123	-	-	123		123
Cumulative changes in deferred taxes	-	_	-	(457)	-	_	(457)	-	(457)
Cumulative changes in employee defined benefit obligations	-	-	-	1,005	-	-	1,005	-	1,005
Total comprehensive income for the period				(12,850)	2,946		(9,904)	34	(9,870)
Incorporation of founder's share	62	-	-	-	-	-	62	-	62
Capital contribution Bentley Management Buy-out	1,343	-	-	-	-	-	1,343	(34)	1,309
Contribution in kind of LSF9 Balta Issuer S.à r.l.	331,250	-	-	-	-	-	331,250	-	331,250
Transfer of share capital to other reserves	(150,000)	-	-	-	-	150,000	-	-	- (22)
Cancellation of founders' share	(62)	-	-	-	-	-	(62)	-	(62)
Contribution of net proceeds from the Primary Tranche of the IPO	79,340	65,660	-	-	-	-	145,000	-	145,000
IPO expenses attributed to the Primary Tranche of the IPO	(7,640)	-	-	-	-	-	(7,640)	-	(7,640)
Capital reorganisation under common control	(1,514)	(1,260)	(138,600)	-	-	(189,878)	(331,252)	-	(331,252)
Total transactions with the owners	252,779	64,400	(138,600)	-	-	(39,878)	138,701	(34)	138,667
Balance at December 31 2017	252,950	65,660	-	(19,913)	6,297	(39,878)	265,116	-	265,116
Balance at December 31 2017	252,950	65,660	-	(19,913)	6,297	(39,878)	265,116		265,116
Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9 (net of tax)	-	-	-	-	(1,308)	-	(1,308)	-	(1,308)
Adjusted balance January 1 2018	252,950	65,660	-	(19,913)	4,989	(39,878)	263,808	-	263,808
Profit / (loss) for the period	-	-	-	-	2,717		2,717		2,717
Dividends paid Other comprehensive income					(2,875)		(2,875)		(2,875)
Exchange differences on translating									
foreign operations Changes in fair value of hedging	-	-	-	(11,140)	-		(11,140)	-	(11,140)
instruments qualifying for cash flow hedge accounting				160			160		160
Cumulative changes in deferred taxes	_	_	_	(7)	_		(7)	_	(7)
Cumulative changes in employee defined benefit obligations	-	_	_	(163)	-		(163)	_	(163)
Total comprehensive income for the period				(11,150)	(159)		(11,309)		(11,309)
Balance at June 30 2018	252,950	65,660	-	(31,063)	4,830	(39,878)	252,499	-	252,499

7.5. Selected Explanatory Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

7.5.1. Significant Accounting Policies

These consolidated condensed interim financial statements for the six months ended June 30, 2018 have been prepared in accordance with IAS 34 *Interim financial reporting*. They do not include all the notes of the type normally included in an annual report. Accordingly, this report is to be read in conjunction with the annual report for the year ended December 31, 2017 and any public announcements made by the Balta Group during the interim reporting period.

The amounts in this document are presented in thousands of euro, unless otherwise stated. Rounding adjustments have been made in calculating some of the financial information included in these consolidated condensed interim financial statements.

The accounting policies are consistent with those of the previous financial year and corresponding interim period, except for the adoption of new and amended standards as set out below.

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

A number of new or amended standards became applicable for the current reporting period and the Group has to change its accounting policies and make retrospective adjustments as a result of adopting IFRS 9 *Financial Instruments* and IFRS 15 *Revenue from Contracts with Customers*.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 has replaced IAS 39 *Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement*, and has fundamentally changed the Group's accounting for impairment losses for financial assets by replacing IAS 39's incurred loss approach with a forward looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach.

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. For trade and other receivables, the Group has applied the standard's simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime expected credit losses. The Group has established a provision matrix. Trade receivables have been categorized by common characteristics that are representative of the customer's abilities to pay (based on geographical region and type of customers such as retail, wholesale or construction & building, and delinquency status). The provision matrix is based on historical observed default rates, whereby historical credit loss experience is adjusted by scalar factors to reflect differences in the Group's view of current and expected economic conditions and historical conditions.

This has resulted in an increase to the provision at January 1, 2018 of €1.9m (€1.3m net of tax). This adjustment is recognized in the opening balance sheet in January 1, 2018, resulting in a decrease of the Trade and Other receivables of €1.9m, an increase in deferred tax assets of €0.6m and a corresponding decrease in retained earnings of €1.3m.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers supersedes IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and a number of revenue related interpretations. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The new standard establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. The standard requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The five steps are to identify the contract(s) with the customer, identify the performance obligations in the contract, determine the transaction price, allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation and recognize revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied.

Balta has assessed each of the revenue streams from an IFRS 15 revenue recognition perspective and has concluded that IFRS 15 does not have an impact on the amount and timing of revenue recognition. In adopting IFRS 15 the Group has considered the following:

Recognition of revenue from distinct performance obligations

The Group has analyzed its contracts with customers to determine all its performance obligations. Performance obligations arising from the Group's sales contracts are mainly order-driven customer deliveries related to the sale of goods. Services mostly have an ancillary role in the Group's business operations, or they complement deliveries of goods. The Group did not identify any distinct performance obligations that should be accounted for in accordance with IFRS 15.

Variable considerations

Some contracts with customers provide volume rebates, financial discounts, price concessions or a right of return for quality claims. Revenue from these sales are recognized based on the price specified in the contract, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. During a financial year, the presentation of the effect of a variable price component can be based on management's judgement of discount drivers, for example the sales quantity reached with a given customer during the year. IFRS 15 does not change the principles applied by the Group to the determination or allocation of the transaction price.

Recognizing revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied

According to IFRS 15, revenue is recognized in the period during which the customer assumes control of the delivered goods. The Group delivers goods under contractual terms based on internationally accepted delivery conditions (Incoterms) and has concluded that the transfer of risks and rewards generally coincides with the transfer of control at a point in time under Incoterms. Consequently, the timing of revenue recognized for the sales of its products does not change under IFRS 15.

Warranty obligations

The Group provides assurance-type warranties that the products sold comply with agreed-upon specifications. These warranties do not quality as a separate service (performance obligations) and hence will continue to be accounted for under IAS 37 *Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets*, consistent with past practice.

(b) Impact of standards issued but not yet applied by the Group

IFRS 16 Leases will replace IAS 17 and will eliminate the distinction between operating and finance leases. This standard is applicable as of January 1, 2019 and will require the Group to record all leases with terms of over one year in the manner currently required for finance leases under IAS 17, and thus to record an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability reflecting future lease payments. The Group has commenced a project to assess the overall impact of the standard, including considering the systems and processes required for implementation. So far, all lease contracts have been identified and centralized in one database together with all main characteristics. The Group is now in the process of gathering the additional information necessary to ascertain the impact of the new standard on its financial statements. Metrics which will be affected include total assets, total liabilities, classification of costs (for example depreciation charges replacing operating lease rental costs) and key financial ratios such as Adjusted EBITDA and leverage. Existing borrowing covenants are not impacted by changes in accounting standards.

7.5.2. Segment Reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the Company's business segments. The performances of the segments is reviewed by the chief operating decision maker, which is the Management Committee.

		Previous reported figures ⁽¹⁾	
<u>(</u> € thousands)	H1 2018	figures "	
Revenue by segment	321,896	333,931	
Rugs	100,764	126,379	
Commercial	101,925	72,475	
Residential	105,132	121,353	
Non-Woven	14,074	13,723	
Revenue by geography	321,896	333,931	
Europe	198,754	221,381	
North America	95,680	80,742	
Rest of World	27,462	31,808	
Adjusted EBITDA by segment	34,171	46,536	
Rugs	12,458	23,246	
Commercial	14,093	10,359	
Residential	6,240	11,416	
Non-Woven	1,380	1,515	
Not conited as mondificus by comment	14,912	24 400	
Net capital expenditure by segment	4,642	21,100 7,771	
Rugs Commercial	5,187	5,846	
Residential	4,688	7,033	
Non-Woven	395	447	
Net inventory by segment	158,425	147,868	
Rugs	65,584	65,898	
Commercial	37,687	31,162	
Residential	50,498	46,818	
Non-Woven	4,656	3,989	
Trade receivables by segment	52,036	49,612	
Rugs	10,624	11,934	
Commercial	22,789	20,397	
Residential	17,046	16,031	
Non-Woven	1,577	1,250	

For Revenue, Adjusted EBITDA and Capital Expenditure, the previous reporting period refers to June 30, 2017. The previous reported period for Net Inventory and Trade Receivables refers to December 31, 2017.

7.5.3. Integration and Restructuring Expenses

The following table sets forth integration and restructuring expenses for the period ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. This comprises various items which are considered by management as non-recurring or unusual by nature.

(€ thousands)	H1 2018	H1 2017
Integration and restructuring expenses	2,410	2,634
Corporate restructuring	-	330
Business restructuring	1,846	-
Acquisition related expenses	-	1,376
Idle IT costs	-	776
Strategic advisory services	358	300
Other	208	(148)

Integration and restructuring expenses over the first six months of 2018 amounted to €2.4m, as compared to €2.6m in the same period last year. €1.8m in the current period is driven by the previously announced optimisation of the Residential operational footprint. In addition, a minor part is fees incurred for strategic advisory services supporting the execution of the six key priorities for delivering improved performance as detailed in the 2017 annual report.

During the six months ended June 30, 2017, €2.6m of integration and restructuring expenses were incurred. Acquisition related expenses amounted to €1.4m and have been incurred in relation to the acquisition of Bentley in March 2017. Incremental (idle) IT costs in relation to a legacy IT system used for a limited number of activities within the Group amounted to €0.8m.

7.5.4. Goodwill

The goodwill decreased by €5.4m from €198.8m as of December 31, 2017 to €193.4m as of June 30, 2018. The decrease in goodwill reflects the changes in foreign exchange rate from the US dollar to euro from the date of acquisition of Bentley. The related foreign exchange fluctuations are presented in other comprehensive income.

The Group considers that the assumptions used in 2017 to test the goodwill for impairment remain valid in all respects and that the six key priorities for delivering improved performance as described in the most recent annual report support the "value in use" calculations.

7.5.5. Net Debt Reconciliation

The following table reconciles the net cash flow to movements in net debt:

	assets		Liabilities from financing actities					
	Cash and cash equivalents	Senior Secured Notes due after 1 year	Senior Secured Notes due within 1 year	Senior Term Loan facility due after 1 year	Senior Term Loan facility due within 1 year	Finance lease liabilities due after 1 year	Finance lease liabilities due within 1 year	
(€ thousands)								
Net debt as at January 1,								
2018	37,338	(234,900)	(5,360)	(35,000)	(23)	(13,310)	(2,225)	(253,480)
Cashflows	(20,021)	-	-	-	-	-	-	(20,021)
Proceeds of borrowings								
with third parties	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
Repayments of borrowings with third parties	-	-	-	-	-	-	1,236	1,236
Foreign exchange adjustments	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	_
Other non-cash								
movements	-					560	(554)	6
Net debt as at June 30,								
2018	17,317	(234,900)	(5,360)	(35,000)	(22)	(12,750)	(1,544)	(272,259)

7.5.6. Related Party Transactions

The related party transactions with shareholders and parties related to the shareholders have not substantially changed in nature and impact compared to the year ended December 31, 2017 and hence no updated information is included in this interim report.

The remuneration of key management is determined on an annual basis, for which reason no further details are included in this interim report.

7.5.7. Commitments

There is no significant evolution to report in terms of commitments. Please refer to Note 39 'Commitments' in the IFRS Financial Statements of the 2017 annual report.

7.5.8. Events After the Statement of Financial Position Date

No subsequent events occurred which could have a significant impact on the interim condensed financial statements of the Group per June 30, 2018.